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HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY
VALENTINE-EDGE MILL

West side of State Route 340 {King's Highway)}, north of
Edges Mill Road (LR 15126), approximately 1.5 miles west

of Downingtown, Downingtown Vicinity (Caln Township)}, Chester
County, Pennsylvania. (Reference: Map of Chester County

[by County Commissioners] 1956).

Mrs. Jacob Edge, Edge's Mill, Downingtown R.D. #1, Pa.

The exterior of this stone mill, built in 1784, appears
relatively unaltered. The mill has not been used since 1918.

HISTORICAL INFORMATION

A.

Physicael History

1.

Original and subsequent owners:

1.

2.

10.
1.

12.
| 13.
1k,
15.
16.

William Penn 1698 to Thomas Musgrave et al. - 1500 acres.

In 1703 500 zcres of the above confirmed to Hannah Musgrave Price,
widow of the above Thomas Musgrave.

Hannah Musgrave Price 1713 to Aaron Mendenhall.

Aaron Mendenhell c¢. 1740 to James Mendenhall.

James Mendenhall 1762 to Robert Valentine, Sr. - mill and 50 acres.
Robert Valentine, Sr. 1781 to Robert Valentine, Jr.
James Kelton, sheriff, 1804 to Thomas and Hunt Downing.
Thomas Downing 1806 to Bunt Downing, his interest.

Hunt Downing 1831 to Joseph M. Downing.

Joseph M. Downing 1835 to Thomas Steel, Jr.

Thomas Steel, Jr. 1835 to Daniel Beaver.

Dégiel Béaver 1839 to Charles Pusey. |

Chﬁrles Puéey 1852 to Jacob Edge.

Jaeoch HZdge 1889 to Joseph V. Edge.

Joseph V. Edge 1913 to Jacob Edge.

Jacob Edge 1945 in trust for wife and family.
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. 2. Date of erection: The mill was built in 1784 according to a date stone
in the east gable end. James Mendenhall had a mill on this site as early
ag 1757. The present mill was built for Rebert Valentine, Jr.

3. Architeet, builder, suppliers: Unknown.
4. Original plans, construction: None Known.

5. Notes on alterations and additions: On the exterior the mill seems very
much as built, except the pent eaves have not been kept. The mill is
empty now. It was last used in 1918 in grinding graphite for the army.
(The mill is now (1969) used as offices for an engineering firm.)

6. Important old views and references:

Views: None found except: Wilmer W. MacElree "Down the Eastern and Up
the Black Brandywine." Plate opposite page 112. This plate shows the
east and south sides of the mill, with the brick chimney that served the
fireplace in the office on the lowest level in the southeast corner.

References: Clipping and manuscript files in Chester County Histerical
Society under headings: Caln Twp. Lands and Caln Twp. Business Houses-—
Edge Mill. Also Wills and deeds in the Chester County Court Housej and
road papers in the Chester County Court House.

. B, Likely Sources Not Yet Investigated: None Known.
C. Supplemental Material

1. Quoted from the Clerk of Courts Office, Court Hcuse, West Chester, Pa.
"Road Papers", Vol. T, page 59:

"To the Court of Quarter Sessions 2-22-1757"

"Petition of James Mendenhall - "That your petitioner labours under very great
Difficulties for want of Roads to & from his mill, having never yet a Road lay'd out

& Confirm'd to his Said mill; but at his fathers & his own Expence your petitioner
therefore prays that you would be pleased to Order Six men to View & if they see
occassion to Lay out a Road beginning at the End of a Lay'd out Road In the line of
Richard Penn and Joshua Romans, thence along the Said line Creossing the provincial Road
t0o near your petitioners land, thence to the aforesaid mill and from the Said Mill the
most Convenient way into the little Conostogoe Road near John McDermed also to Lay out
a Road from the aforesaid Mill the most Convenient way through the lands of Aarom
Mendenhall into the aforesaid little Conostogoe Rcocad at or near the land of Thomas
Parks and your petitioner as in Duty bound shall pray & c.

James Mendenhall."
2. @uoted from "Daily Local News', 12-16-1886:

"NEW ROLLER FLOUR MILL. - Jacob V. Edge, near Downingiown, has jusi started very
suceessfully a 50-barrel roller flour mill that is ahead of anthing of the kind in

. this county. Mr. Edge took a trip to Minneapclis (the great milling centre} last
September and there got the latest points in the trade. He purchased the best and
newest style machinery, ten pair Allis rolls and purifiers, Heine's new flour bolt; .
Cleaning machinery, Etc. The mill building was buiit by Mr. E's great-father, Robertﬁiif
Valentine, in 178L4. Mr. Edge Is now prepared to furnish the best roller flour to' = *
dealers and consumers at wholesale and retail rates. See Advertisement elsewhere in -
this issue."
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3 See alsoe Supplemental Material, under Mendenhall-Valentine-Edge House
(PA-1201), Downingtown Vieinity (Caln Township), Chester County,
Pennsylvania.

Prepared by Bart Anderson - May 1659
Curator, Chester County Historical Socilety

PART II. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION

A,

C.

General Statement:

1. Architectural Character: There appears to have been very little change
in the exterior of the mill since it was built. However, the interior has
been stripped of all machinery.

2. Condition of Fabric: Good.

Description of Exterior:

1. Over-all dimensions: The mill measures 38'~6" by 53'-6". It is one-and
-a=half stories on the west side, sloping to three-and-a-half stories on
the east stream side.

2. Foundations: Stone.

3. Wall construction: Random rubble masonry.

4. Chimneys: Briek; in southeast corner.

5.  Openings:

a, Doorways and doors: Seem original; except for large door added in
west wall.

b. Windows and shutters: No shutters.
6. Roof:
&, Shape, covering: Steeply pitched, modern gable roof.
b. Cornice, eaves: COriginal; pent roofs removed.
¢. Dorners: None.
Descripinn of Interidr:

1. Floor plans: Structure had been a flour mill with office in lowest level,
southeast corner. Machinery has been removed.

2. tairways: Probably original.
3. Flooring: Seems original.

L, Wall and ceiling finish: Rough.
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Doorways and doors: The interior is empty.
Trim: None.
Hardware: Mostly ©ld on exterior doors. Over-shot waterwheel removed.
Lighting: None.

Heating: Office fireplace was in southeast corner, lowest level.

General setting and orientation: Mill faces east in a beautiful setting
on hill sloping to east.

Enclosures: None.
Outbuildings: Main house and several outbuildings still standing.
Walk=s, driveways: None.

Landscaping, gardens: Well planted around house.

Prepared by Bart Anderson - May 1959
Curator, Chester County Historical Society



